
AGENDA 

CITY OF ST. CHARLES  

TREE COMMISSION MEETING 

RALPH GRATHOFF, CHAIR 
 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2017 – 7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL, COUNCIL COMMITTEE ROOM 

2 EAST MAIN STREET 

 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Roll Call:  Blaine, Brens, Duerr, Grathoff, Hauser, Myers, Otto, Wilfong, Ziegler 
 

3. Introduction of Visitors, Comments and Concerns 
 

4. Minutes:  Review and Approval 

A. Motion to accept and place on file minutes of the September 14, 2017 Tree 

Commission meeting 
 

5. Old Business 

 

6. Natural Resources Commission  

A. Revisions to City Code – 2nd Draft   
 

7. New Business 

 

8. Committee Reports 

A. Education Committee 

B. Langum Park Clean-Up Committee 
 

9. Communications 

A. Motion to accept and place on file Public Services Division Tree Activity Reports 

for September and October 2017  
 

10. Additional Items from Commissioners, Staff or Citizens 

A. Commissioners 

B. Staff 

C. Visitors 
 

11. Adjournment 

 

Next meeting – January 11, 2018 



 

MINUTES 

CITY OF ST. CHARLES  

TREE COMMISSION MEETING 

RALPH GRATHOFF, CHAIRMAN 

September 14, 2017 
 

Members Present: Chair. Ralph Grathoff, Valerie Blaine, Kathy Brens, Jon Duerr, Raymond Hauser, Pam Otto, 

Caroline Wilfong, Ron Ziegler 

 

Members Absent: Suzi Myers   

 

Others Present: Chris Adesso, Jeremy Craft, Marcelline D’Argento, AJ Reineking   

 

Visitors Present: Heather Gondreau, Carol Haggas, Lee Haggas, Loren Nagy    

 

1. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 

The meeting was convened by Chair. Grathoff at 7:02  p.m.  

 

2. Introduction of Visitors, Comments and Concerns 
Visitors were introduced to all present.  

 

3. Minutes Review and Approval   

Motion to approve and place into the public record the minutes of the July 13, 2017 Tree Commission 

meeting. Motion by Comm. Ziegler, second by Comm. Otto to approve the minutes. Voice vote: 

unanimous; nays – none. Motion carried at 7:04 p.m.   

 

4. Old Business  

A. Mr. Craft reported approximately 150 trees will be planted in the parkways this fall. A number of 

Maple trees will be replaced during fall planting.  

 

B. Mr. Craft informed the Commissioners that an inventory of the City’s trees is underway. Graf Tree 

Care has made good progress working in the northwest quadrant to document the City’s tree 

population.  

 

5. Natural Resources Commission  

Public Works staff provided the Commission with a first draft of proposed revisions to the City Code [Title 

12, Chapter 12.20, Sections .040 and .050] to reflect the transition from the St. Charles Tree Commission to 

the St. Charles Natural Resources Commission.  

 

Mr. Reineking summarized the draft is intended to reflect conversations the Tree Commission has had for 

the past several months.  Mr. Adesso further stated the idea for the Tree Commission’s transition to a 

Natural Resources Commission (“NRC”) was initially presented to the City’s Government Services 

Committee (“GSC”) about six months ago. Since then there has been support and feedback from elected 

officials who have interacted with Public Works staff, and they are awaiting the Tree Commission’s 

decision on whether it will move forward with the transition to a NRC. The draft code revisions have not 

been presented to any elected officials at this time.  Mr. Adesso noted the proposed revisions were drafted 

by Ms. D’Argento as a foundation for the Tree Commission to build on moving forward.   

 

Mr. Adesso explained there would be four steps to finalizing the NRC transition: 1) the Tree Commission 

and City staff will finalize the draft of the proposed revisions to City Code, 2) the City’s legal counsel 

would then review the draft Code revisions, 3) the proposed revisions would be presented to the GSC, and 

4) the City Council would formally adopt the revisions into the Code and the Code would be officially 

amended.  

 

 

 

 



Tree Commission 

September 14, 2017 

Page 2 
 

The Commissioners reviewed in detail and discussed the first draft of the proposed Code revisions as 

follows: 

• The revisions reflect a broader umbrella which encompasses the responsibilities of the Tree 

Commission - no responsibilities were eliminated. Additional responsibilities were included to 

reflect to proposed activities of a NRC.  

• St. Charles will continue to maintain its Tree City USA designation.   

• The number of Commissioners would increase from nine (9) to eleven (11) members.  

• Four (4) additional non-voting student members would be included. There is strong interest at the 

high school level in natural resources programs.  

• Possibly one upper class student member and one lower class student member could participate 

from each of the City’s two public high schools and/or local colleges with a time commitment to 

the NRC of one school semester. 

• Non-voting student members would be appointed by the NRC. 

• Meeting frequency would be once per month. 

• The Code does not preclude the NRC from discussing relevant issues with the St. Charles Park 

District, School District or City other entities. 

• Biotic and abiotic inter-relationships are recognized in the revised Code. 

• The Mayor would continue to appoint new Commissioners; the Public Works Department would 

not become involved in this process. 

 

City staff will update the draft Code to reflect the discussions held at this meeting. An updated second draft 

will be provided to the Commission for review as soon as it is available, and placed on the agenda for the 

November 2017 meeting.  

 

6. New Business  

 

7. Committee Reports 

A. Education Committee  

Comm. Myers, in absentia, proposed the purchase of a book entitled The Sparrow and the Trees for each of 

the City’s elementary school libraries [twelve copies]. The book is a folktale depicting various tree species 

and their characteristics.  Motion by Comm. Duerr, second by Comm. Brens to purchase the books. Voice 

vote: unanimous; nays – none. Motion carried at 7:45 p.m.  City staff will place the book order utilizing the 

City’s Arbor Day budget. 

 

B. Langum Woods Clean-Up 
Comm. Otto reported Ms. Gondreau has reached out to an environmental club at St. Charles East High 

School and is waiting to hear back on their participation. Comm. Blaine suggested contacting some of 

the environmental studies teachers at the schools regarding a possible field trip during a school day. 

Key Clubs may also be interested in participating. Comm. Blaine noted there is a teacher who is 

currently coordinating field trips with her at Creek Bend Nature Center, and she may also be interested 

in participating at Langum Woods.  

 

8. Communications – Approval of Public Services Division Tree Activity Reports – July / August 2017 

Motion by Comm. Brens to approve the above-referenced reports and place into the public record, second 

by Comm. Otto. Voice vote: unanimous; nays – none. Motion carried at 7:50 a.m. 

 

9. Additional Items 

A. Commissioners 

Looking ahead, Chair. Grathoff asked if there is another elementary school teacher who may become   

involved in Arbor Day similarly to Mrs. Tieche, who recently retired from Munhall Elementary 

School. Ms. Gondreau noted Norton Creek Elementary School has a large earth club and an outdoor 

education garden; there may be teachers at the school who would be interested in supporting Arbor 

Day.  



Tree Commission 

September 14, 2017 

Page 3 
 

Comm. Blaine noted there is an event this Saturday morning to measure trees for the Kane County Big 

Tree Registry. There is also an opportunity to participate in the Adopt a Turtle program which benefits 

endangered Blanding’s turtles. Comm. Otto has already adopted a turtle.  

 

Comm. Brens informed the Commission and visitors about the Grave Reminders Cemetery Walk 

coming up in October.  

 

Comm. Duerr thanked the City staff for the holistic improvement to the parkway at Kehoe Drive and 

Horne Street where Norway Maple trees were removed.   

 

Mr. Nagy commented on the upcoming sustainable landscape event at the Chicago Botanic Garden 

which will feature low maintenance landscapes.  

 

Ms. Gondreau announced there will be a Green Fair at the DuPage County Fairgrounds in late 

September.   

 

Comm. Otto reported the beekeeping issue had been resolved and an ordinance was passed which 

tends to favor beekeepers. The overall issue did not involve any major health concerns, but was 

essentially a neighborhood dispute.  

 

B. City Staff  

None. 

 

C. Visitors  

Mr. & Mrs. Haggas thanked the Commission for welcoming them to the meeting and expressed 

interest in participating in the NRC. 

 

9. Adjournment 

Motion by Comm. Otto to adjourn the meeting, second by Comm. Duerr. Voice vote:  unanimous; nays – 

none. Motion carried at 8:00 p.m.  



1 

 

(2007-M-56: § 1; 1998-M-28: § 1; 1992-M-66: § 1; 1992-M-47: § 1; 1988-M-98: § 

1; 1986-M-63: § 12.502; Prior code: § 12.503; 12.504; 12.505; 12.507; and 12.508) 

 

KEY:  Draft 2 – Add    

Draft 2 – Delete       

Draft 1 Amendments (reviewed by Tree Commission 09/14/17) 

 

 

12.20.040 – St. Charles Natural Resources Tree Commission: establishment, 

composition, appointment of members  

A. Establishment – The St. Charles Natural Resources Tree Commission 

(hereinafter “NRC Tree Commission” {formerly the St. Charles Tree Commission}) 

is hereby established and replaces incorporates the functions and duties of the 

former Tree Commission. in function and duty.  The NRC’s Its functions and duties 

are limited to those set forth in this chapter. 

B. Composition – The NRC St. Charles Tree Commission shall be composed of 

eleven nine commissioners.  All commissioners

 shall be appointed by the Mayor 

with the approval of the City Council. All commissioners shall serve without pay.  

Subject to the exceptions in paragraph “Cc” immediately below, each 

commissioner shall serve for a term of four years. 

C. Appointment of Members – Five (5) Four of the eleven (11) nine commissioners 

initially appointed to the NRC Tree Commission shall serve for a term of two (2) 

years; six (6) five of the eleven (11) nine commissioners initially appointed shall 

serve for a term of four (4) years. Terms shall start on May 1.  Determination of 

the initial term length (two or four year) shall be by lot. The Chairperson of the 



2 

 

NRC Tree Commission shall be elected by majority vote of the NRC Tree 

Commission and shall be subject to re-election annually on May 1. The NRC may 

also include one (1) or more, not exceeding four (4), non-voting member(s) who 

shall be a high school student and/or college student resident having an interest 

in the duties and mission of the NRC. Student members shall be appointed by the 

NRC and shall serve on the NRC for a minimum of one (1) school semester and a 

maximum term of two (2) years.  Student members may be appointed to the NRC 

at the age of eighteen (18) if a vacancy exists on the NRC. 

D. Expiration or Vacation of Terms – Within thirty (30) days following the 

expiration of the term of any appointed commissioner, a successor shall be 

appointed by the Mayor with the approval of the City Council, and the successor 

shall serve for a term of four (4) years.  Should any commissioner resign or be 

removed from the NRC Tree Commission, a successor shall be appointed by the 

Mayor with the approval of the City Council and shall serve for the unexpired 

period of the vacated term.  A member of the NRC Tree Commission may be 

removed by the Mayor with the approval of a majority of the City Council. 

E. Official Meetings – The NRC shall meet twelve (12) times per year on the 

second Thursday of every calendar month. 

(1998-M-32: § 1; 1998-M-28: § 1)   

12.20.050 – Natural Resources Tree Commission dDuties  

A. Duties – The NRC Tree Commission shall perform the following duties:  

1. Within a reasonable time after the appointment of the NRC Tree Commission, 

upon call of the Chairperson of the NRC Tree Commission, the NRC Tree 

Commission shall meet and adopt rules of procedure for regular and special 

meetings to fulfill the duties imposed upon it by this Chapter. 



3 

 

2. The NRC Tree Commission shall advise and consult the City’s Government 

Services Committee on any matter pertaining to the matters topics covered in this 

Chapter and its enforcement. The topics under which this advice and consultation 

may be given may include, but are not limited to, any of the following: 

a. Amendment to this Chapter and alteration or revisions of the Uurban Forestry 

Management Plan; 

b. Policy concerning matters of City business as outlined in this Chapter selection, 

planting, maintenance, and removal of trees and within the City; 

c. Recommend investigation into practices of green infrastructure, sustainable 

business practices and programs, native species and ecological restorations and 

other matters of importance that may influence the City’s environmental 

footprint. allocation of funds and expenditures of funds by Department of Public 

Works for planting and maintenance of trees and on city-owned property or right-

of-way. 

d. Establishment of educational and informational programs including, but not 

limited to, natural resources conservation, environmental awareness, public 

health, an annual yearly Arbor Day celebration and the City’s Tree City USA 

designation. 

e. Investigate and recommend to the City’s Public Works Department and the City 

Council as it may consider appropriate to support: 

Preservation, conservation, enhancement and protection of the 

environment, natural resources and environmental values of the City 

including the quality of land, air and water and the interrelationship that 

exists between them and all living things within the limits of the City. 



4 

 

All recommendations by the NRC and information resulting from the NRC’s 

activities shall be forwarded to the designated representative of the City’s Public 

Works Department and the City Council.  

f. Advise the City Council on such matters as may be requested. 

g. Nothing in this section shall operate or be construed to authorize the 

regulation, direction or management of the St. Charles Park District natural 

resources assets.  

 (Ord. 2012-M-47 § 5.)  

3. The NRC Tree Commission, with the assistance of the City’s Public Works 

Department and City Arborist, shall develop, and each subsequent year, update 

the Uurban Forestry Management Pplan annually. The Urban Forestry 

Management Pplan shall outline the City’s urban forestry program activities for a 

minimum of the next five (5) years. Theis Urban Forestry Management Pplan shall  

describe the urban forestry activities to be undertaken by the Ccity, the reasons 

for those activities, the possible funding source(s), the means of accomplishing 

the activities, the alternatives available to the Ccity to fund or accomplish the 

activity, the projected date of completion and the consequences if the activity is 

not completed.  Activities may include, but are not limited to, street tree 

inventory, planting, tree removal, beautification projects and educational 

projects. 

4. The NRC Tree Commission, with the assistance of the City’s Public Works 

Department and the City Arborist, shall develop and periodically review and 

revise, as necessary, the City’s Trees and Shrubs Ordinance. This ordinance shall 

contain regulations and standards for the planting, maintenance and removal of 

trees and shrubs upon Ccity-owned property and the City right-of-way. 

 (Ord. 2012-M-47 § 5.) 



5 

 

5. The NRC Tree Commission shall cause the Urban Forestry Management Plan 

and the Trees and Shrubs Ordinance, and all revisions and amendments to it, to 

be published and promulgated and shall cause copies of the ordinance and all 

revisions and amendments to it, to be available for public inspection at the office 

of the City Clerk.  The Trees and Shrubs Ordinance and any revisions and additions 

thereto shall become effective upon the effective date of any ordinance approval 

date of approving the ordinance or revision or amendments thereto. 

6. The NRC Tree Commission shall inform the public about the activities of the 

NRC Tree Commission. 

7. The City shall issue such permits as are required by this Chapter and shall 

obtain as a condition precedent to the issuance of such permits the written 

agreement of each person who applies for such permits that he or she will comply 

with the requirement of this Chapter, the Urban Forestry Management Plan and 

with the regulations and standards of the Trees and Shrubs Ordinance. The City’s 

Public Works Department shall have the right to inspect all work performed 

pursuant to such permits.  If the City’s Public Works Department finds that the 

work performed is not in compliance with the requirements of this Chapter, the 

Urban Forestry Management Plan or with the regulations or standards of the 

Trees and Shrubs Ordinance, the City’s Public Works Department shall provide 

written notice of its his/her findings to the permit applicant. The notice shall 

contain a copy of Section 12.20 of this Chapter, and the permit shall be nullified 

and shall be voided. and t The City’s Public Works Department may issue a written 

order that the permit applicant cease and desist all work for which the permit was 

required. The permit applicant shall be subject to penalty under the terms of the 

Ordinance. The City’s Public Works Department may take steps to correct the 



6 

 

results of the non-complying work and the reasonable costs of such steps shall be 

charged to the permit applicant. 

B. Public Utility Companies 

Nothing in this section shall be construed to exempt public utility companies or 

their agents from any of the requirements of this Ordinance. 
































	a11-09-17
	Draft m09-14-17
	Draft  2 Code Rev 12.20.040
	Sept-Oct 2017 Tree Reports

